QA-270

Blue Bay Farm circa 1760-90
Stevensville vicinity

Private

Blue Bay Farm is one of the most interesting 18th
century houses on Kent Island. Probably constructed
circa 1760-90, the house bears comparison with several
other contemporary houses on Kent Island and in Annapolis.
The header bond brickwork is only found in four other
buildings in Queen Anne's County but was quite popular
in Annapolis and Chestertown from the 1740's until the
1780's. The unusual four room plan is also relatively
unusual on the Eastern Shore, It may be compared with
several other 18th century houses on Kent Island, and
more significantly, with a group of houses in Annapolis,
several of which also employ header bond brickwork.
Much of the early interior woodwork also survives,
including an extremely fine glass front cupboard,
handsome fielded paneling, interior cornices and an
unusual eight-panel exterior door.
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Blue Bay Farm is located on the west side of
Maryland Route 18 on Kent Island approximately two
miles north of Stevensville., The house is sited
near the bay shore and faces west and southwest
across the Chesapeake Bay. - -

The original house is of brick construction, .
two stories high, five bays wide and two rooms deep
with flush brick chimneys at either end of the
pitched gable roof. A two story wing projecting
from the north gable wall is of frame construction
with a 20th century prick veneer.

The east facade, facing the road, serves today
as the principallfacade.;_Thewfront,door with side-
lights. and transom is located in the center bay
flanked by two 6/6 windows on each side. Five 6/6
windows are ranged across the second story;jtherg_are
no dormer windows. = The brickwork is laid in Flemish
bond above a plain watertable. The house foundation
is concealed by the foundation of a one story porch
that stretches across this facade. A one-course
belt course is almost entirely concealed by the porch
roof. The eaves are boxed in and trimmed with a

complex bed mold; the roof is covered with asphault
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7.1 DESCRIPTION

shingles.

On the south gable wall, there are single 6/6
windows in the west bay of the first and second story
and two four-light windows flanking the chimney in the
upper gable, A bulkhead cellar entrance is located in
the east bay of the foundation. The brickwork is laid
in three-course bond above a plain water table and English
bond foundation. A one-course belt course stretches
across the gable and turns the east corner but stops
flush with the west facade. The rakeboards are modern
replacements.

The west facade fenestration is similar to the east
facade except the first floor door lacks sidelights
and a double door invthe center bay of the second story
opens onto the flat roof of a small entrance porch. The
first floor door, architrave and five-light transom are
all original. The brickwork on this facade is laid in
all-header bond above a plain water table and English
bond foundation. There is no belt course on this facade,
The cornice and roof match the east facade.

The majority of the north gable wall is concealed
by the two story wing. The brickwork on this facade is
laid in three-course bond above a plain water table and
English bond foundation. The one-course belt course is

also present on this gable. The rakeboards are replacements.
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The wing is two stories hiéh and three bays long.
The west wall is set back approximately six feet from
the west facade of the main house. The frame structure
has been covered with a brick veneer.

The interior plaﬁ of the main house has evidently
been modified slightly. At present the first floor
consists of three rooms: a rectangular stair hall to
the southeast, a nearly square room with fireplace to
the southwest, and a large rectangular room extending
the full depth oflthe house to the north with a single
fireplace centered on the north gable wall. A large
triangular chimney base and interior partition wall in
the north end of the cellar suggest that the north room
was originally partitioned to form two smaller chambers
with a shared chimney stack. This four room plan is
virtually identical to Morgan's Enclosure (QA-169) and
is similar to Cloverfields (QA-269), two brick houses
on Kent Island dating to circa 1780.

The southwest room is the most formal room on the
first floor. The fireplace is on the south gable wall,
flanked by a window on the right and an original built-in
cupboard to the left. The cupboard is semi-circular
in plan with a pair of arched doors with the original
glass, wide muttons, and butterfly shelves. The

cupboard is trimmed with a large cove architrave
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molding with a small molded keystone. The lower cupboard
doors ére paneled and match the fielded paneling over

the mantel, The mantel is a particularly handsome
broken-field surround with an arched opening, and a simple
shelf with a broad cove molding. This mantel covers the
lower edge of the paneling and was probably added circa
1790-1810. Early trim in this room includes a large,
complex interior cornice, heavily molded architrave trim
and an unusual paneled door on the west facade. This
door is unusually wide and is paneled with two rows of
three vertical fielded panels below a pair of horizontal
panels at the top. The door is hung with three H-L
hinges and is fitted with a large box lock with brass
knob and fittings. The soffits and jambs of this door
opening and the door to the north room are paneled.

Other trim includes a one~piece chairrail and later
rabbeted baseboard.

The north room originally consisted of a pair of
smaller chambers with a shared triangular chimney. The
chimney and partition have been removed and replaced
with a more conventional fireplace centered on the north
gable wall. The fielded paneling in this room may have
been reused from one or both of the smaller chambers.
The mantel in this room is a simple 19th century board

surround with a cove molding below a simple shelf.
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The interior cornice in this room breaks forward above
the windows. The cornice appears to be original on the
facade walls and has been skillfully pieced in on the
north and south walls. The rabbeted baseboard dates to
the mid-19th century.

The second floor is quite unusual. An L-shaped
hall extends through the center of the house from west
to east and across the south end of the east facade to
the stair. There are three chambers on this floor, one
to the southwest and two smaller chambers to the north.
The southwest chamber is the largest and most formal of
the three. It is heated by a small fireplace on the
south gable wall. The chimney breast is boxed in with
handsome fielded paneling and the fireplace is flanked
on the left by a closet with fielded four-panel door on
H-L hinges and on the right by a small cupboard in the
cheek wall of the chimney breast. The fielded six-panel
doors to the southwest chamber and the northwest chamber
are hung on H-L hinges and molded baseboard survives
in the hall and both west rooms. The two north chambers
are not heated, though original fireplaces were probably
removed when the original triangular stack was altered.
The partition between these two rooms is no longer
supported from below and has been reinforced by running
tie rods up to the attic and "hanging" the second floor

partition from above.
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Blue Bay Farm is one of’the most interesting
18th century houses on Kent Island. Probably
constructed circa 1760-90, the house bears comparison
with several other contemporary houses on Kent
Island and in Annapolis. The header bond brickwork
is only found in four other buildings in Queen
Anne's County but was quite popular in Annapolis
and Chestertown from the 1740's until the 1780's.
The unusual four room plan is' also relatively: - -
unusual ‘on’ the Eastern Shore. - It may be compared -
with several other 18th century houses on Kent
Island and, more significantly, with a group of’
houses in Annapolis, 'several of which also employ
header bond brickwork. Much of the early interior
woodwork also survives, including an extremely
fine glass front cupboard, handsome fielded
paneling, interior cornices and an unusual eight-

panel exterior door.
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two story wing prOJectlng from ‘the north gable wall 1s of

The west facade fenestratlon is similar to the east
facade except the first floor door lacks. 51de11ghts ‘and a
AR double door in“the center bay of the second story opens onto

: _the flat roof ‘of a small lentrance. porch
~aeesqooryrarchitraveand five=light transéom are all orlglnal.
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o e o @gboOvE & - plaln ‘water-table ‘and- English bond-foundation.:
There is no belt course on thls facade ' The cornice and
roof match the east facade. Alilendi g Do s




QA-270

CONTINUATION SHEET

7.1 DESCRIPTION

The majority of the north gable wall is concealed by
the two story wing. The brickwork on this facade is laid in
three-course bond above a plain water table and English
bond foundation. The one-course belt course is also

present on this gable. The rakeboards are replacements. ... _

The wing is two stories high and three bays long. The
west wall is set back approximately six feet from the west
facade of the main house. The frame structure has been
covered with a brick veneer.

The interior plan of the main house has evidently been
modified slightly. At present the first floor consists
of three rooms: a rectangular stair hall to the southeast,
a nearly square room with fireplace to the southwest, and
a large rectangular room extending the full depth of the
house to the north with a single fireplace centered on the
north gable wall. A large triangular chimney base and
interior partition wall in the north end of the cellar
suggest that the north room was originally partitioned to
form two smaller chambers with a shared chimney stack. This
four roomplan is virtually identical to Morgan’s Enclosure
(QA-169) and is similar to Cloverfields(QA-269), two brick
houses on Kent Island dating to circa 1780,

The southwest room is the most formal room on the first
floor. The fireplace is on the south gable wall, flanked by
a window on the right and an original built-in cupboard to
the left. The cupboard is semi-circular in plan with a pair
of arched doors with the original glass, wide muttons, and
butterfly shelves. The cupboard is trimmed with a large
cove architrave molding with a small molded keystone. The
lower cupboard doors are paneled and match the fielded
paneling over the mantel. The mantel is particularly
handsome broken-field surround with an arched opening, and
a simple shelf with a broad cove molding. The mantel covers

.. the lower edge of the paneling and was probably added circa —=i- 70

1790~-1810, Early trim in this room includes a large,

complex interior cornice; heavily molded architrave trim---

and an unusual paneled door on the west facade. This door
is unusually wide and is paneled with two rows of three
vertical fielded panels below a pair of horizontal panels
at the top. The door is hung with three H-L hinges and is

fitted with a large box lock with brass knob and fittings.

The soffits and jambs of this door opening and the door to
the north room are paneled. Other trim includes a one-piece
chairrail and later rabbeted baseboard.
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The north room originally consisted of a pair of
smaller chambers with a shared triangular chimney. The
chimney and partition have been removed and replaced with
a more conventional fireplace centered on the north gable

wall. The fielded_paneling in_this room may have been

reused from one or both-of the small-chambers;~—The mantel-

in this room is a simple 19th century board surround with a
cove molding below a simple shelf. The interior cornice in
this room breaks forward above the windows. The cornice
appears to be original on the facade walls and have been
skillfully pieced in on the north and south walls. The
rabbeted baseboard dates to the mid-17th century.

The second floor is quite unusual. An L-shaped hall
extends through the center of the house from west to east
and across the south end of the east facade to the stair.
There are three chambers on this flooxr, one to the southwest
and two smaller chambers to the north. The southwest
chamber is the largest and most formal of the three, It is
heated by a small fireplace on the south gable wall. The
chimney breast is boxed in with handsome fielded paneling
and the fireplace is flanked on the left by a closet with
fielded four-panel door on H-L hinges and on the right by a
small cupboard in the cheek wall of the chimney breast. The
fielded six-panel doors to the southwest chamber and the
northwest chamber are hung on H-L hinges and molded
baseboard survives in the hall and both west rooms. The two
north chambers are not heated though original fireplaces
" were probably removed when the original triangular stack
was altered. The partition between these two rooms is no
longer supported from below and has been reinforced by
running tie rods up to the attic and "hanging" the second
floor partition from above. :
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QA-270 Blue Bay Farm
Stevenaville vicinity
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